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Financial Highlights

1998 %Change
HKS$'Million over1997
Turnover 4,732 5.1%
Profitattributable toshareholders 313 +40.2%
Shareholders’funds 1137 +0.7%
HK$
Basic earnings per share 1.20 +11.0%*
Dividend pershare -Interim 0.15
-Final 0.30
- Special 0.70
*Onenlargedcapital
Assets Employed Capital and Liabilities
asat31 March 1998 asat31 March 1998
05% 03%
33% 05% 07%
| 52% 116%
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41.3% 50.7%

® Cashandbankbalances
0 Othercurrentassets

@ Fixed assets

@ Otherinvestments
Associated companies

@ Deferredexpenditure

® Sshareholders’ funds ® Minorityinterests

@ Othercurrentliabilities Finance leases

@ Proposeddividends @ Deferredtaxation



Turnover Profit Attributable to Shareholders
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Business Structure

SHUION CONSTRUCTION AND MATERIALS LIMITED

CONSTRUCTION CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS

_ . Ready-mixed concrete
Public housing

Aggregatesand

rock products
Othergovernment

and
institutional buildings

Ready-mixed mortars

Interiordesign,
fitting-outand
buildingrenovation

Business Structure




Chairman’s
Statement

Results

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am
pleased to report that Shui On Construction
and MaterialsLimited (SOCAM) hasachieved
highly satisfactory results for the year ended
31March1998. The Group’s profitattributable
toshareholdersrose to HK$313 million, an
increase of 40% over that of the previous
year, representing earnings per share of
HK$1.20. Turnoveramounted toHK$4,732
million, aslight decrease of 5% from that of
theyearbefore.

Dividends
The Directorsrecommended the paymentofa
final dividend of HK$0.30 per share to

shareholderswhose namesappearonthe

Register of Members of the Companyon 8
September 1998. Thistogether withthe
interim dividend of HK$0.15 per share givesa
total of HK$0.45 per share for the year.

Aftercareful consideration ofthe Group’s
developmentneedsin the coming twoyears
and noting the substantial cash surplus of
SOCAM, the Directorsfurther proposed thata
special dividend of HK$0.70 per share be
paid toshareholders.

The proposed final dividend and special
dividend will be paid on8 October 1998
followingapprovalatthe Annual General
Meeting.



Business Review
The performance of the Group’svarious

operationsremainedstrong despite Hong
Kong’sunstableeconomicenvironment,
thanksto the hard work and dedication of our
experiencedandcapable managementteam
andstaff. Theircommitmentto providing
quality products and services on schedule
and within budgeted costs, theirwillingness
toadoptinnovative productionand
construction techniques, and their ability to
maintain cordial relationshipswithclients

Lo Hong Sui, Vincent
Chairman

andsuppliers, all contributed to the
continued success of the Group in the past
year.

The property marketboominthefirstthree
quartersof1997, togetherwith theincrease
in public sector construction activities,
continuedtogenerate healthy profitsforthe
Construction Materials Division. The turnover
ofourready-mixedconcrete, aggregatesand
cementoperations, however, decreased
slightly due to the incessant wet weather last
year.
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Chairman’sStatement

Tung ChungArea 10
Phases I, Il and Ill

Our Construction Materials Division was also

actively seeking to expand inthe Chinese
Mainland.Sincecommencementofoperation
in October 1997, the new rotarykiln at our
jointventurecementplantin Chongqing,
capable of producing 300,000 tonnes per
annum, has been running at close to full
capacity tosupply high grade cement to the
nearby area. We had also acquired a60%
interestina500,000-tonne cementplantin
Nanjing, enabling SOCAM to establish a
strategicbase along the YangtzeRiverand
capturethe potential for salesto Shanghai
and other coastal citiesin the Mainland

where major infrastructure projectsare being
carriedout.

Turnoverforthe Construction Division
remained relatively high as aresult of the
acceleration of publichousing programmes.
Wewere abletoimprove our profitmargins
through effective cost controland good
projectmanagement.

Itwas unfortunate that the glass balustrade
incidenton 22 December 1997 atPing Tin
Shopping Centretook place.Weregretthat
theHong KongHousing Authority’sBuilding
Committee had madethe decision, before



investigation of all concerned partieswas
completed, to penalize Shui On Building
Contractors Limited (SOBC). Asaresult of
their decision, SOBC wasbanned from being
awardedtheHongKongHousing Authority’s
New Works Il contracts for sixmonths starting
from 30 April 1998. SOBC’s two lowest bid
contractsworth about HK$2 billionwere also
notawarded. Nevertheless, the suspension is
notlikely to have anysignificantimpacton
our financial performance in 1998/99. SOBC
will endeavour to make up for the loss of
opportunities by securing more contracts
fromothergovernmentagenciesand public
institutions.

NorthPointGovernment
Offices, a design-and-
buildproject

Thisyear, Shui On Construction Company
Limited (SOC) successfully completed to the
satisfaction of our client, the Architectural
Services Department, a substantial design-
and-build contract, namely, the North Point
GovernmentOfficesproject. The building’s
successful completion demonstrated fully our
ability todeliver superior quality design-and-
build services on schedule and at competitive
prices.
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Chairman’s Statement

Tse b=y b

e b W owita o
gl Bl e e !

L [P

MrJohn Leich (right),
GeneralManagerofKen
OnConcreteCompany
Limited, receiveda
CertificateofMeritfrom
MrPo Chung OBE JR
Chairman, Organizing
Committeeof1998
HKMAQualityAward
(top).

ProjectManagersand
representativesof
SOCAM’sawardwinning
sites pictured at the
AwardPresentation
Ceremonyofthe HKHA
Site Safety Campaign
1997 (bottom).

Duringtheyearthe Group againreceived = TheHongKongHousing Authority’sSafety
recognition foritsaccomplishmentsin
quality, site safety and environmental

protection. Theawardsincluded the

TrainingAward.

= The WorksBureau’sConsiderate
) ContractorsSite Award for the Tseung Kwan
following: .
OAreal3site.

Shui On Building Contractors Limited i . o
. . Shui On Construction Company Limited
(Construction Division)
= BestBuildingWorksContractor Award 1997
inthe Hong Kong Housing Authority Site

Safety Campaign foranunprecedented six

(Construction Division)
» The WorksBureau’sConsiderate
ContractorsSite Award fortheHong Kong

yearsinarow Institute of Educationsite.

= Four Best Building Works Site Awards, Ken OnConcrete Company Limited

includingone “Gold”” and three ““Silver”
awards, inthe Hong Kong Housing
Authority Site Safety Campaign.

(Construction Materials Division)

= AcCertificate of Meritfromthe HongKong
ManagementAssociation’s1998 Quality
Awardcompetition.
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Outlook

The Asian financial turmoil hassignificantly
slowed downthe HongKongeconomyand
adversely affected many sectors of our
society. However, it has not had significant
impacton the Group’s performance, thanksto
anincrease in construction activity in the
publicsectorinHong Kongand the high
volume of outstanding ordersandworks.

TheHongKong SARGovernmenthas
repeatedly stated thatitwilladhere toits
policy of providing an average of 50,000
public sector residential units per year to
meetthe strong demand for housinginHong
Kong. Asone of the SAR’sleading contractors
of publichousing, building for both the Hong
KongHousing AuthorityandHongKong

SOCAM hasbeen
awardedthe contractfor
the PSPS development
atTseungKwan O Town
LotNo. 62 Area 65A.

Housing Society, our Construction Division
canexpect furthergrowthinthe foreseeable
future.

We have also decided to re-enter the market
forPrivate Sector Participation Scheme
(PSPS)home ownership development
projectsrecently because we believe the
market for these contracts has stabilised. In
July 1998, the Construction Division has
already beenawarded the contract forthe
PSPS developmentat Tseung Kwan O.

Inaddition, we will continue to actively
compete for major contracts of various
governmentdepartmentsandagenciessuch
asthe Architectural Services Department,
several of which arein the form of design-
and-buildcontracts.
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Chairman’s Statement

Maincampusof
Hong KongInstitute of
Education

Aside from publichousingandgovernment
buildings, we plantocompete actively inthe
institutional marketwhere we feelwehavea
competitive edge. Ourimpressive portfolio of
pastand present clientsinclude the
UniversityofHongKong,HongKong nstitute
ofEducation, the Hospital Authority, China
Lightand Power Co. Ltd., the Mass Transit
RailwayCorporationandtheKowloonCanton
Railway Corporation, toname butafew. Our
extensive experience and good track record
should assist us in securing major contracts
fromtheseinstitutionsin the future.

The marketforconstruction materials
including concrete, cementand quarry rock
products is expected to be steady in Hong
Kong.Apartfromincreasinghousing

construction activities in the public sector,
the SAR Governmenthasalready proposed
spending about HK$235 billionon
infrastructure developmentsoverthe next
fiveyears.

Likewise, there will be rising demand for high
qualitycementinthe Chinese Mainland,
particularly since the Mainland governmentis
planning to spend US$750billion on
infrastructure construction projectsinthe
next fewyears. The 15" National Congress of
the CommunistParty of Chinareaffirmedthe
Mainlandgovernment’sdeterminationto
deepenreformsinthe housingsector. Welfare
housing will be phased out, leadingtoa
substantial increase in demand for private
residential propertiesand arise in
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construction activities. This, togetherwiththe
anticipatedincrease ininfrastructure
developments, promises excellent business
opportunities for producersand suppliers of
high quality cementsuch as our Construction
Materials Division.

Both our Construction Materials Divisionand
Construction Division have already secured
animpressive number of major supply and
construction contractsforthe comingyear.
Thisallows me to say with confidence that
SOCAMwvill,barringunforeseen
circumstances, achieve satisfactory profit
growth nextyear. Ourcementbusinessinthe
Chinese Mainland is also setto generate
attractive returnsinafewyears’ time.

Housing forsenior
citizens (top) and
Shopping Centre
(bottom left) of Tin Wan
Estate Phase Il project
andHang Tsui Court
(Tsui Wan Estate project)
(bottomright)were
completedduringthe
year.

ForHongKong, 1998 and 1999 aregoing to be
difficultbutchallengingyears. Underthe
currenteconomicclimate, SOCAMwill
continue totakeaprudentapproachin
pursuing new business opportunitiesbothin
Hong Kongandinthe Mainland. We will, as
always, continue tostrive for excellence,
offering quality service and productswhich
should allow us to maintain our leadership
position in the various sectors in which we do
business.

Acknowledgements

Finally, Iwould like to extend my sincerest
thanks to SOCAM’sstaff members, our most
valuable asset, whose loyalty, dedicationand
hard work have made our success this year
possible.

Lo Hong Sui, Vincent
Chairman

HongKong, July1998
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Review of Operations

Construction Division

The Construction Division recorded a pre-tax
profit of HK$155 million for the 97/98
financial year, anincrease of 105% over the
previousyear. The turnover of the
Construction Division for the yearwas
HK$3,839 million, representing aslight
decrease of 3% compared with the previous
year. Public housing contracts accounted for
HK$1,941 million,equivalentto51%ofthe
turnover.

Public Housing - Shui On Building
Contractors (SOBC)

SOBC completed a total of seven contracts,
comprising 6,950 residential unitsand
variouscommercial premises, for the Hong
KongHousing Authorityduringtheyearwith
highly satisfactory results. They included
Tung Chung Area 10 Phases|, Iland Ill, Tsui
Wan Estate, Ma On Shan Area 90 Phase IV, Tin
Wan Estate Phase llland Tseung Kwan O Area

ChoiYukKeung,
Lawrence
ManagingDirector

59 Phase VII. The total value of these
contractsamountedtoapproximately
HK$3,283million.

TheHongKong SARGovernment'slongterm
target tosupply anaverage of 50,000 public
housing units each year to resolve the
housing shortage problemresultedina
substantial increase in the number of
Housing Authority contracts putoutfor
tender. Around 60 contractswereavailable
fortenderduring the twelve monthsto
August 1998, comparedwithanaverage of
approximately twenty projectsin previous
years.

SOBCwon eightHousing Authorityand
Housing Society projectstotalling 9,480
residential units during the fifteenmonthsto
June 1998, withacombined value of around
HK$5,980 million,an unprecedented record
forour Group. Tender marginsinthe sector
also became healthier in the past year.



Ma On Shan Area 90
Phase IV (top)

Tseung Kwan O Area 59
Phase VIl (Sheung Tak
Shopping Centre)
(bottom)

Theunfortunate glass balustrade incident at
Ping Tin Shopping Centre resulted in SOBC
being banned from the award of NewWorkslI
contracts by the Housing Authority for six
monthscommencing 30 April 1998. Contracts
for two lowest bids submitted by SOBCwitha
value of approximately HK$2 billion were also
notawarded by the Housing Authority. SOBC
disagreed with the decisionand feltstrongly
aggrieved, and will strive to secure more
contractsinthe expanding publichousing
marketafter the lifting of the ban at theend
of October 1998. At 30 June 1998, SOBCsstill
had onhandeleven contractsfromthe
Housing Authorityand Housing Society,
amountingtoapproximatelyHK$7,910million
and representing some 14,300 units.

Since April 1998, subsidiaries of SOCAM had
re-enteredthe marketforhome ownership
developmentprojectsunderthePrivate
Sector Participation Scheme (PSPS), a form of

governmentsubsidizedhousing programme
whichisdesigned, builtand financed by
private enterprises. The Shui On Groupwasa
pioneer insuch developments, having
developed the first PSPS projectin Yau Tong
in the 1970s as well as the largest PSPS
projectever built, the 5,904-unitRichland
Gardensin Kowloon Bay, in the early 1980s.

SOCAM, with its substantial cash deposits
and financial resources, took advantage of
thecurrentmarketsituation. Atthe time of
thisreport, we had received confirmation that
we were successful in the bidding of the PSPS
projectin Tseung Kwan O TownLotNo 62 Area
65A, and aconsortium comprising some of
thelargestlocal and international bankshad
been formed to provide aloan for this project.
The development of this PSPS project would
take approximately 28 monthsfrom August
1998 and should provide good and steady
profits for our Group inthe coming two
financialyears.
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Review of Operations

MTRCMainDepotin
SiuHo Wan

Other Governmentand Institutional

Buildings

- Shui On Construction (SOC)

Two major contracts of SOC, the HongKong
Institute of Education - Main Campusin Tai Po
and the design-and-build contractofthe
North Point Government OfficesatJavaRoad,
were completed to the satisfaction of our
clientsduring the year under very tight
construction schedules. SOC's 50%
participationinthe construction ofthe MTRC
Main Depot Contract518in SiuHo Wanwas
also handed over smoothly in the first quarter
0f1998, intime for the commencement of
operationofthenewairportrailway.

During theyear, three contracts for the
construction of governmentclinicswitha
totalvalue ofapproximately HK$700 million
were awarded to SOC. Inconjunctionwith the
launching of the massive public housing
programme, numeroussubstantial projects
fromthe Architectural Services Department
will be available for tender in the next twelve
months, including governmentofficesand
quarters, schools, hospitals and ancillary
facilities. Some of these projectsare in the
design-and-build category inwhich SOC has
built up averysatisfactory track record.
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Renovation and Fitting Out - Pat Davie

Pat Davie remained competitive and secured
anumber of large contractstotalling
approximately HK$360 millionforthe 15
monthstoJune 1998. Theyincluded two
MTRCrenovation projectsforthe KwunTong
stationand KowloonBay Depot,
refurbishment for 868 and 888 Cheung Sha
WanRoad, the grandstand oftheHongKong
Jockey Club Shatin Race Course and various
projectsat the new Chek Lap Kokairport. The
slowdown in the economy ssince the last
quarter of 1997 had seen worksin the fitting-
outsector diminishing but ashift of Pat Davie
totherenovationmarket, particularly thosein
theinstitutional sector, had offset the
shortfall. Inaddition to securing asubstantial

Underconstruction:
SouthKwaiChung
Specialist Out-Patient
Clinic (top) and Proposed
Sandwich Class Housing
Developmentat
TseungKwan O Town Lot
No. 43 Area 13 (bottom)

workload for the coming financial year, Pat
Davie hasalso been pre-qualified to tender
foranumber of large contracts.

Contracts On Hand

At30June 1998, the gross and outstanding
values of contracts on hand of the
ConstructionDivisionamountedto
approximatelyHK$10.4billionand HK$7.8
billionrespectively, which represented the
highest values ever achieved by this Division.
Togetherwiththe large number of projectson
stream fromthe Housing Authority, the
Housing Society, the Architectural Services
Departmentaswellasthe MTRC,KCRCand
otherinstitutional clients, the Construction
Division should be in agood position to
achieve higherturnoversand profits.
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Review of Operations

Ken On’s Tai Lam Kok

plant (top)and
Tung Chungplant
(bottom)

Construction Materials Division
Ready-Mixed Concrete - Ken On

Thereductioninthe demand forconcretein
thesecond half of 1997, resulting from the
slowdown inthe private residential sector
and the completion of various projects of the
newairportand MTRC extension, was offset
toalarge extentby the acceleration of the
publicsector housing programme. Overall
consumption as well as gross margins
remained stable for the year and, despite the
incessant rain between July and September
1997, the total production of 1.1 million cubic
metres of concrete was only slightly below

the 1.2 million cubic metres in the previous
year.

Ken Onwasone of four finalistsin the
prestigiousHongKongManagement
Association Quality Award 1998.The
Certificate of Meritawarded toKenOn
representsamajor recognition for our pursuit
of excellence in quality and service, and our
continued effortstoimprove andinnovate.

At30June 1998, the outstanding order book
of Ken Onstood ataround one million cubic

metreswhichshould allow a full production

schedule inthe coming year.



Aggregates and Rock Production -

Lamma Rock Products

LammaRock Products' three quarries,
located onLammal sland in Hong Kong, at
ChikWaninZhuhaiandatLongkoushanin
Xinhui, produced atotal of 4.3 million tonnes
of rock products during the year. Most of the
turnoverwasderived fromits production of
3.3milliontonnesofaggregates ofwhich
57% was supplied to an in-house customer,
KenOn.

Areduction inthe demand for marine rocks
occurred due to the completion of most of the
newairportand MTRC infrastructure and civil
engineeringworkswhichrequired

Lamma Rock Products’
Longkoushanquarryin
Xinhui (top left), Chik
WanquarryinZhuhai
(topright)andLamma
quarry inHong Kong
(bottom).

reclamation. The bad weather inthesummer
0f 1997 further dampened thiscategory of
sales but the effect on results was not
significantdue to the relatively lowmargin of
the productsconcerned. Rehabilitation of the
quarry face of the Lammal lsland site as well
asthe excavation of rockswere bothon
scheduleinaccordance with government
requirements. We are in the process of
locating areplacementquarry inthe nearby
areaofthe Chinese Mainland in preparation
forthe expiry of the currentLammaquarrying
contractin 2002. The healthy order book of
Ken On, aswell asthe increase in
infrastructure projectsin thecomingyear,
should assume areasonable level of
quarryingactivities.
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Review of Operations

Far East Cementsilos
andterminalatLamma
Island

CementImportand Distribution -

Far East Cement
ThecementmarketinHongKongremained
stablein 1997. Far East Cement, 50% of which
isowned by SOCAM, registered atrading
volume of 552,000 tonnes of bulk and
bagged cement. Ken Onwasthe major
customeraccounting forapproximately 75%
of bulk cementsales.

The Asian financial turmoil had significantly
curtailed the level of civiland building
activities in South East Asian countries. The
resultant excess supply in the region, coupled
with the continual recession in Japan, had
createdadropincementpricesthroughout
Asia. Thisreduction inthe cost of imported
cement, togetherwith the steady ordersfrom
Ken On aswell asthe stable cement marketin
Hong Kong, should enable Far East Cementto
continue itsgood trading recordsin 1998.

Chongqing CementOperation

The THCementGroupinChongging,inwhich
the Group hasan effective interest of 34%,
had a successful year. The operation of the
existing kilnentered the second full year
underthe jointventure and continued to be
profitable. The newrotarykiln, witha
capacity of 300,000 tonnes per annum, was
successfully commissioned in October 1997
and was capable of reaching nearly full
production by the beginning of1998.

The quality of the highgrade cementfrom
thisnew kiln exceeded our expectationand a
portion of the production was of the very high
625 grade standard. Other cement products,
with the addition of fly ash and slag, were
alsodeveloped, withdemand oftenexceeding
the production capacity. The sales networkin
Chongging, acity with over 30 million people,
wasexpanded to take advantage of the
increasinginfrastructureandbuilding



activitiesin this fourth directmunicipality in
China. The robust sales of this joint venture in

theexpandingcementmarketinChongging
has led to feasibility studies on the viability of
adding asecond rotary kiln ofaround

300,000 tonnesof annual production
capacity.

Nanjing Cement Operation

The over-supply of cementin Asiahad
affected certain Chinese cities near the
coastal region and a more cautiousapproach
wasadopted by the Group in our negotiations
with the two major cement producers of
Nanijing, withwhom lettersofintent for joint
venture co-operationhad previouslybeen
signed. However, recentaccelerationin
massive infrastructure projectsand the
commercialisation of state-subsidised
housing had raised optimismin the cement
market. In March 1998, an agreementwas
reachedwithJiangnan Cement, the smaller of
the two Nanjing cement producers,anda
jointventure was established. Our Group

Stockpile (top left)and
rotarykiln (top right)
inthe Nanjing cement
plant.

Rotarykilninthe
Chonggingcement
plant(bottom).

holds 60% of thiscement operationand
approximately HK$15 millionwasinjected as
working capital. In April, aninitial equity
contributionofapproximately HK$45million
wasmade and afurtheramountofroughly
HK$45 million will be required before theend
0f 1998 to fulfil our commitment. The existing
Jiangnan Cementplantiscapable of
producing about 500,000 tonnesofgrade
425 and 525 cement products per annum and
theintentionistoincrease the production
capacity to one million tonnesinthe future. A
team comprising our senior executivesand
cementexpertshad been assigned the
responsibilityofenhancingmanagementin
theproduction, marketinganddistribution
capabilities of thiscement plantinthe
comingmonths.

Negotiationsforajointventurewiththe
larger of the two Nanjing cement producers,
Zhongquo Cement, carried on but, giventhe
currentuncertainty in the industry, we will
continue totake aprudentapproachin
pursuing this project.
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Review of Operations

Projectsunder
construction:Homantin
South Phase lll (top),
Tin Shui WaiArea 31
Phase Il (bottom left),
and Un Chau Street
Estate Phase Il
(bottomright)

With the competitivesituationinthe
Shanghaicementmarketfollowing the Asian
financial turmoilin October, we also delayed
ourco-operationwith the Shanghaicement
producerwithwhomaletter ofintenthad
beensigned. A jointventureislikely to be
deferred untilmore attractive termsofco-
operationcanbe obtained.

Proceeds from New Issue and
Placement of Shares

The current Asian financial crisis has
prompted us to take amore conservative
approachinourinvestmentinthe prospective
cementjointventuresasstatedinthe
prospectus for the floatation of our Groupin
February 1997. The THCementplantin
Chongqing, asexplained, isoperating
successfully and feasibility studieson a
furtherkilniscontemplated. Investment
opportunitiesinotherChonggingcement
plantsare being pursued cautiously. With the
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slowdownalsointhe negotiationsforcement
jointventuresin Shanghaiand Nanjing,
furthercommitmentincementjointventures
inthe Chinese Mainland in the coming year is
notexpected to be substantial, apart fromthe
second capitalinjection of approximately
HK$45 millioninthe Jiangnan Cementjoint
venture. At 31 March 1998, the unused
floatation proceeds ofaround HK$560
million, togetherwith surpluscash from
operations, were placed on cash and fixed
depositswhichamounted toapproximately
HK$926 million. Part of the floatation
proceeds will now be diverted to PSPS
projectswhich will present opportunitiesto
generate healthy profitsand turnovers. The
PSPS projectin Tseung Kwan O, whichwe
have secured forapremiumofapproximately
HK$509 million, will require equity
contribution of around HK$200 millionwhich
can be comfortably covered by our
substantial cash resources.



Directors and Senior Management

Directors

Executive Directors

Lo Hong Sui, Vincent GBS

Aged 50, hasbeen the Chairman of the
CompanysinceitsincorporationinJanuary
1997. He isalso chairman of the Shui On
Group which he founded 27 yearsago. Heis
thefounding chairmanandcurrentpresident
of the Business and Professionals Federation
ofHongKong,amemberofTheNinth
National Committee of Chinese People's
Political Consultative Conference, the
presidentof Shanghai -Hong Kong Council
forthePromotionand Developmentof
Yangtze, an adviser to Chinese Society of
Macroeconomics,amemberofHongKong/
United StatesEconomicCo-operation
Committee, acouncilmember of the China
Overseas Friendship Association, acourt
member ofthe Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology and a director of
GreatEagle HoldingsLimited. Mr. Lowas
awarded the Gold BauhiniaStar recently.

Wong YuetLeung, Frankie

Aged 49, hasbeen the Vice-chairman of the
CompanysinceitsincorporationinJanuary
1997. Hejoined the Shui On Groupin 1981
and has been itsgroup managing director
since 1991. He graduated with aBachelor of
Science degree in Economics and a Master of
Artsdegree fromthe London School of
Economics and Political Science and the
University of Lancaster respectively.

Choi Yuk Keung, Lawrence

Aged 44, hasbeen the Managing Director of
the Companysince itsincorporationin
January 1997. He has also been an executive
director of the Shui On Group since 1990. He
wasappointed managing director of the Shui

OnGroup'sconstructiondivisionin 1991 and
also that of the construction materials
divisionin 1995. He joined the Shui On Group
in 1973 and has over 20 years of experience
inconstruction. He holds a Bachelor of
Science degreeinEngineering fromthe
University of California, Berkeley.

Wong FookLam, Raymond

Aged 43, has been an Executive Director of
the Companysince itsincorporationin
January 1997. He joined the Shui On Groupin
1989 and has been an executive director since
1992. HeisaFellow of the Institute of
Chartered AccountantsinEnglandand Wales
and of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants,
andan Associate of the Institute of Chartered
Accountantsof Australia.

Wong Hak Wood, Louis

Aged 47, hasbeenan Executive Director of
the Company sinceitsincorporationin
January 1997. He hasalso been a director of
ShuiOn Building ContractorsLimitedand
ShuiOn Construction Company Limited since
1993. Hejoined the Shui On Groupin 1981
and has over 20 years of experience in
construction. He holds a Bachelor of Science
degreeinCivilEngineering fromthe
University of Manchester and isa Chartered
Engineer, aFellow of the Institution of Civil
Engineersand amember of the HongKong
Institution of Engineers. He iscurrently
chairman ofthe Building Committeeand
honorarytreasureroftheHongKong
Construction Association,amember of the
Registered Contractors' DisciplinaryBoard
and chairman of the Board of Studies of the
ConstructionManagementTraining
Programme ofthe Construction Industry
TrainingAuthority.
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Lowe Hoh WaiWan, Vivien

Aged 49, hasbeen an Executive Director of
the Company since itsincorporationin
January 1997. She joined the Shui On Group
in 1980 and has been an executive director of
Shui On (Contractors) Limited since 1993.
She holds aBachelor of Artsdegreein
Sociology from the State University of New
York, a Master of Artsdegree in Sociology
fromthe University of lllinois, and a Doctor of
Philosophy degree in Sociology fromthe
University of Wisconsin. She iscurrently a
member of the Labour Advisory Board
Committee on Occupational Safetyand
Health.

Non-executive Directors

Cheng Bing Chark, Henry

Aged 47, hasbeenaNon-executive Director
of the Company since itsincorporationin
January 1997. He has also been an executive
director of the Shui On Group and managing
director of the Shui On Group's properties
divisionsince 1994. He first joined the Shui
OnGroupin1982. He emigrated to Australia
in 1990 and rejoined the Shui On Group in
1992. He holds a Master of Artsdegree from
the University of Wisconsin.

Wong Ying Wai, Wilfred

Aged 45, hasbeenaNon-executive Director
of the Company since itsincorporationin
January 1997. Heisa Deputy to The Ninth
National People’s Congress, presidentand
chiefexecutive officer of Chinalnvestment
Group Limited, chairman of the Businessand
ProfessionalsFederation ofHong Kongand
presidentof TheHongKongFederation of
Youth Groups. He was educated at Harvard
University, Oxford University, the University of
Hong Kong and the Chinese University of
HongKong.

Griffiths, Anthony

Aged 54, hasbeenaNon-executive Director
ofthe Companysinceitsincorporationin
January 1997. He isthe managing director of
GML Consulting Limited. Heisalso the vice-
chairmanoftheHongKongCoalition of
Service Industry and the chairman of its
Professional Services Committee,and a
member ofthe InlandRevenue Department
Users' Committee and the Inland Revenue
Review Board. HeisaFellow of the Institute
ofChartered AccountantsinEnglandand
Wales.

Senior Management

Chan Cheu Hung, William

Aged 50, is an Executive Director of Shui On
Building MaterialsLimited, KenOnConcrete
Company Limitedand LammaRock Products
Limited. He joined the ShuiOn Groupin
1978, emigrated to Australiain 1984 and
rejoined the Shui On Group in 1988. He holds
aMaster'sdegree in Business Administration
andisaFellow of the Institute of Quarrying.

Leung Kam Woon, Barnabas

Aged 51, isthe Director of business
developmentoftheconstruction materials
division. He joined the Shui On Groupin 1978
and wasthe managing director of Far East
CementCompany Limited from1995to 1996.
He holdsaMaster'sdegree in Management
Science and a Master'sdegreein
Engineering, bothfromthe University of
California, Berkeley and a Bachelor'sdegree
inEngineering Science from the University of
Portland. He isaFellow of the Institute of

Quarrying.



Law, JohnRodney

Aged52,isthe Directorand General Manager
of Pat Davie Limited. He joined the Shui On
Groupin 1988 and has over 30 years of
experience inthe constructionindustry.

Leich, John

Aged47,isthe General Manager of Ken On
Concrete CompanyLimited. He joined the
Shui On Group in 1992 and has over 20 years
ofexperience inthe concrete and cement
industries. He holds a Bachelor'sdegree in
CivilEngineering fromthe University of
Sydney and has completed studies fora
Master'sdegree in Business Administration
at the University of Technology, Sydney.

Lee Wing Kee, Stephen

Aged 45, isthe General Manager of Shui On
Building ContractorsLimited and Shui On
Construction Company Limited. He joined the
ShuiOn Groupin 1985 butemigratedin 1994
and rejoined the Shui On Groupin 1996. He
has over 20 years of experience in
construction. He holds a Bachelor of Science
degreein CivilEngineering and isachartered
civilengineer.

Li Chun Ki, Stephen

Aged 45, isthe Deputy General Manager of
Shui OnBuilding ContractorsLimited. He
joined the Shui On Group in 1985 and has
over 20 years of experience in construction.
He holds aBachelor of Applied Science
degreein CivilEngineering and isachartered
civilengineer.

Wong Leung Bing, Tony

Aged 47, isthe Technical Director of the
construction materialsdivision. He joined the
Shui On Groupin 1979 butleftin 1989 and
rejoined in 1992. He has over 18 years of
experience in the construction materials
industry inHong Kong. He holdsaBachelor’s
degree in CivilEngineering and a Master's
degreeinConcrete Technologyboth fromthe
UniversityofDundee.

Kong Hon Ling, Frank

Aged 46, isthe General Manager of special
projectsfor the construction materials
division. He joined the Shui On Group in 1982
and has over 20 years of experience in the
quarrying industry. He holds aBachelor's
degreein Mechanical Engineeringanda
Master'sdegree in Mechanical Engineering
from Nottingham University and isamember
ofthelnstitute of Quarrying.

Tam Kim Hung, Vincent

Aged 46, isthe Deputy General Manager of
special projects for the construction materials
division. He joined the Shui On Groupin
1981. He holds aBachelor'sdegree in
Business Administration and a Master of
Science degree in Management Studies.

Li Chi Keung, Evans

Aged 37, isthe Company Secretary of the
Company and has been with the ShuiOn
Groupsince 1991. He holdsa Master's
degree inBusiness Administration fromthe
University of Leicester. He isa Fellow of the
Association of Chartered Certified
Accountantsand an Associate of The Institute
of Chartered Secretariesand Administrators,
theHongKongInstitute of Company
Secretariesand the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants.
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The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 1998.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Itssubsidiaries are engaged principally in
constructionand contracting, renovationandfitting out, manufacturingand trading of construction

materials,and investmentholding.

An analysis of the Group's turnover and contribution to the Group's results of each principal activity and by

geographical locationisas follows:-

Contributionto
Turnover Group results
1998 1997 1998 1997
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(@) Analysis by principal activities
Companyand subsidiaries
Constructionand building maintenance 3,839,317 3,963,021 155,320 75,849
Sale of construction materials 892,557 1,021,155 132,766 160,768
Others - - 44,778 5,901
4,731,874 4,984,176 332,864 242,518
Associated companies
Sale of construction materials - - 29,450 24,849
4,731,874 4,984,176 362,314 267,367
(b) Analysisbygeographical locations
Companyand subsidiaries
HongKong 4,637,567 4,870,811 321,344 226,587
Otherregionsin the People's
Republic of China 94,307 113,365 11,520 15931
4,731,874 4,984,176 332,864 242,518
Associated companies
HongKong - - 29,450 24,849
4,731,874 4,984,176 362,314 267,367

Financial Results and Dividends

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 1998 are set out in the consolidated profitand loss
accounton page 33. Aninterim dividend of HK$0.15 per share was paid on 15 December 1997. The
Directors have resolved to recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.30 per share and a special

dividend of HK$0.70 per share to shareholders whose names appear on the Company's register of

memberson 8 September 1998.



Fixed Assets
The movements in fixed assets of the Group during the year are shown in note (9) to the financial
statements.

Share Capital
Movementsin the share capital of the Company during the year are shown in note (17) to the financial
statements.

Reserves

Movementsin the share premium, contributed surplus, translation reserve and property revaluation
reserve of the Company and the Group during the year are shown in notes (18), (19), (20) and (21) to the
financialstatements.

Pre-emptive Rights
There isno provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company's Bye-laws although there are no statutory
restrictions against such rights under the laws in Bermuda.

Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries
Particulars regarding the principal subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Appendix | to the financial
statements.

Particulars of Principal Associated Companies
Particulars regarding the principal associated companies of the Group are set outin Appendix Il to the
financialstatements.

Particulars of Properties
Particulars regarding the properties held by the Group are set outin Appendix Il to the financial
statements.

Directors

The Directors of the Company during the year were:-
Mr.LoHong Sui, Vincent
Mr.Wong YuetLeung,Frankie
Mr.ChoiYukKeung,Lawrence
Mr.WongFookLam,Raymond
Mr.WongHakWood, Louis
Mrs. Lowe Hoh WaiWan, Vivien

* Mr.ChengBing Chark, Henry
#* Mr.WongYingWai,Wilfred
#* Mr.Griffiths, Anthony

* Non-executivedirectors
# Independentdirectors

Inaccordance with the Company's Bye-laws, Mr. Wong Hak Wood, Louisand Mrs. Lowe Hoh Wai Wan, Vivien

shallretire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

The non-executive directors are subject to the same rotation requirements as the executive directors.
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Directors’ Interests in Shares

(i)

(ii)

Shares

Asat 31 March 1998, the interests of the Directorsin the share capital of the Company and its associated
corporations as recorded in the register maintained under Section 29 of the Securities (Disclosure of
Interests) Ordinance were as follows:-

Number of shares

Personal Family Corporate Other

Name of Directors interests interests interests interests
Mr.LoHong Sui, Vincent - - - 192,148,000
(Note)

Mr.Wong YuetLeung, Frankie 975,000 = = =
Mr.ChoiYukKeung,Lawrence 1,389,000 - - -
Mr.WongFookLam,Raymond - - - -
Mr.WongHakWood, Louis 488,000 - - -

Mrs. Lowe HohWaiWan, Vivien - - = =
Mr.ChengBing Chark, Henry - - - -
Mr.WongYingWai, Wilfred = S - -
Mr.Griffiths, Anthony - = o -

Apartfromtheabove, asat 31 March 1998, there was no other interest recorded in the register required
to be kept under Section 29 of the Securities (Disclosure of Interests) Ordinance.

Note:-

The 192,148,000 shares are held by Shui On Company Limited, which iswholly owned by Bosrich Holdings Inc.
(""Bosrich™). The sharesin Bosrich are owned by a trust of which Mr. Lo Hong Sui, Vincent, Mrs. Lo Ho Ching Kit,
Jeanandtheirchildrenareeligible beneficiaries. Accordingly, Mr.LoHongSui, Vincentisdeemedtobeinterested
in such shares.

Options

The Directors had personal interests in share options to subscribe for shares in the Company atan
exercise price of HK$7.50 per share, exercisable during the period from 25 January 1998 to 24 July
2002, as follows:

Numberof share options

Granted Exercised
Name of Directors duringtheyear  duringtheyear  At31March 1998
Mr.Wong YuetLeung, Frankie 400,000 - 400,000
Mr.Choi YukKeung, Lawrence 400,000 - 400,000
Mr.WongFookLam,Raymond 280,000 - 280,000
Mr.WongHakWood, Louis 280,000 - 280,000
Mrs. Lowe Hoh WaiWan, Vivien 200,000 - 200,000

Details of the employee share option scheme are set outin note 17(c) to the financial statements.

Apartfromthe above, during the year, none of the Directorsand chief executive of the Company or their
spouses or children under the age of 18 were granted or had exercised any right to subscribe for any
equity or debt securities of the Company or any of its associated corporations.



Substantial Shareholders’ Interests in Shares

Other than the interests disclosed under the section headed "'Directors’ Interests in Shares", the register of
substantial shareholders maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 16(1) of the Securities (Disclosure
of Interests) Ordinance disclosed that there isno person having an interest in 10% or more of the issued share
capital of the Company asat 31 March 1998.

Dealings in the Company’s Shares
During theyearunder review, neither the Company norany ofitssubsidiaries haspurchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company'sshares.

Connected Transactions
Perkime Limited and Super Race Limited, 50% owned associated companies of Shui On Company Limited
("'SOCL"), the Company'sultimate holding company, performed construction worksassubcontractorsto Shui
OnBuilding Contractors Limited (*SOBC""), awholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, on normal commercial
termsduring the year. The aggregate amount charged by these companies of SOCL to SOBC for the year was
approximately HK$2,652,000.

During the year, Pat Davie Limited (*'PDL""), a60% owned subsidiary of the Group, performed decorationand
renovationworksfor ShanghaiRuichenProperty Company Limited,a99% ownedsubsidiary of SOCL, Shanghai
Shui On Consulting Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of SOCL, and Shanghai Jiu Hai Rimmer
Properties Company Limited, a 80% owned subsidiary of SOCL. The jobs were charged at profit margins
according to normal commercial terms and were considered to be fair and reasonable in the circumstances.
Theaggregate amountcharged by PDL for suchworks for the year was approximately HK$16,131,000.

The Company provided managementinformation systemsservices to Shui OnInvestment Company Limited,
ShuiOnProperties ManagementLimited, Shui On PropertiesLimited and Centre Top Limited, wholly-owned
subsidiaries of SOCL, during the year. The services were charged at rates meant to recover the costs and
expensesincurred by the Companyand were fairand reasonable in the circumstances. The aggregate amount
charged by the Company for such services for the year was approximately HK$564,000.

During the year, Shui On HoldingsLimited (*'SOH""), awholly-owned subsidiary of SOCL, continued to provide
guarantee for a finance lease facility extended to Shui On Plant & Equipment Services Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Group. As at 31 March 1998, the outstanding obligation under this finance lease
amounted toapproximately HK$4,058,000.

The Group is licensed by SOH to use the trademark, trade name *'Shui On", **»  fW and/or the Seagull
devices on anon-exclusive, royalty-free basis for an unlimited period of time.
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Directors’ Interests

Saveasaforesaid underthe Sectionheaded "'Connected Transactions'’, there were no contractsofsignificance,
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year inwhich adirector had amaterial interest either directly or indirectly.

None of the Directors of the Company has aservice contract with the Group which is not determinable by the
Group withinoneyearwithout payment of compensation, other than statutory compensations.

Other than the share options granted to the Directors as aforementioned, there were no arrangements to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party so as to enable the Directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body
corporate.

Employee Provident and Retirement Scheme
Details of the Group'semployee providentand retirement scheme are shown in note (4)(iii) to the financial
statements.

Interest Capitalised
Nointerest was capitalised by the Group during the year.

Liquidity and Financing

Asat 31 March 1998, the Group had cash balances of approximately HK$926,177,000 (1997 - HK$710,539,000).
Otherthanobligationsunder finance leasesof approximately HK$11,880,000 (1997 - HK$101,278,000), there
were no overdrafts, bills payable or other bankloansasat 31 March 1998 (1997 - these bank loansamounted
toapproximatelyHK$41,172,000intotal).

Major Supplies and Major Customers
The five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for approximately 20% of the total purchases of the Group
intheyear.

Thefive largestcustomersofthe Group accounted for approximately 75% of the total turnover of the Groupin
theyearwith the largest customer, Hong Kong Housing Authority, accounting for 33% of the turnover of the
Group.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the Company's issued share capital) has a beneficial interest in the Group's five largest
suppliers or five largest customers.



Code of Best Practice

The Company has complied throughout the year with the Code of Best Practice as set out in Appendix 14 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, except that non-
executive directors were not appointed for a specific term as they are subject to retirement by rotation at
annual general meetingsinaccordance with the Company's Bye-laws.

Group Financial Summary
Afinancial summary of the Group isset outin Appendix IV to the financial statements.

Year 2000 Compliance

Areview of the Group's computer systems has been conducted to identify areas which could be affected by
theyear 2000 issue and appropriate measures are being undertaken to ensure that the computer systemsin
use within the Group are year 2000 compliant within 1999. Itis anticipated that the year 2000 issue will not
poseanysignificantoperational problemsto the Group and thatexpenditure associated with suchcompliance
will notbe material.

Auditors

The financial statements for the year have been audited by Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu who have
expressed their willingness to continue in office. A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual
general meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu asauditors of the Company.

OnbehalfoftheBoard

Lo Hong Sui, Vincent
Chairman

HongKong, 7July 1998
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Reportofthe Auditors

Deloitte Touche Y. EERS
Tohmatsu =R EM 1T

’\ Certified Public Accountants BESTH
<— 26th Floor, Wing On Centre BERRRTEET MR
111 Connaught Road Central KB 2618

Hong Kong B ¢ (852) 2852 1600
Tel: (852) 2852 1600 BH : (852) 2541 1911
Fax:(852) 2541 1911 ETHM | mail@deloitte.com.hk

E-mail: mail@deloitte.com.hk

To the Shareholders of Shui On Construction and Materials Limited
(Incorporatedin Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 33 to 60 which have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principlesgenerally acceptedinHongKong.

Respective Responsibilities of Directors and Auditors

The Company'sdirectorsare responsible for the preparation of financial statementswhich give atrue andfair
view. In preparing financial statements which give a true and fair view it is fundamental that appropriate
accounting policies are selected and applied consistently.

Itisourresponsibility to form anindependent opinion, based on our audit, onthose statements and toreport
ouropiniontoyou.

Basis of Opinion

We conducted ourauditinaccordance with Statementsof Auditing Standardsissued by the Hong Kong Society
of Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates and
judgementsmadebythedirectorsinthe preparationofthefinancialstatements, and of whethertheaccounting
policies are appropriate to the Company'sand Group's circumstances, consistently applied and adequately
disclosed.

We plannedand performedourauditsoastoobtainall theinformationandexplanationswhichwe considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated the
overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the financial statements. We believe that our audit
provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Opinion

Inouropinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and the
Group as at 31 March 1998 and of the profit and cash flows of the Group for the year then ended and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified PublicAccountants

HongKong, 7 July 1998



Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

Forthe yearended 31 March 1998

1998 1997
Notes HK$ HK$
Turnover ®3) 4,731,873,688 4,984,176,184
Profitfromordinaryactivities 4) 332,863,543 242,518,521
Share of results of associated companies 29,450,381 24,848,772
Profitbeforetaxation 362,313,924 267,367,293
Taxation (5) (49,965,400) (43,913,679)
Profitaftertaxation 312,348,524 223,453,614
Minorityinterest 787,526 (38,915)
Profitattributabletoshareholders (6) 313,136,050 223,414,699
Dividends @) (299,000,000) (180,000,000)
Profitfortheyearretained 14,136,050 43,414,699
Earnings pershare 8) 1.20 1.09
The profitfor the year retained comprises:-
Company andsubsidiaries 19,410,086 22,664,310
Associated companies
-Share of profitafter taxation 24,925,964 20,750,389
-Dividend paid to the Group (30,200,000) -
(5.274,036) 20,750,389
14,136,050 43,414,699
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Asat31March 1998

1998 1997
TheGroup TheCompany TheGroup  TheCompany
Notes HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Fixed assets 9) 271,946,443 4,249,651 282,579,056 5,174,052
Investments in subsidiaries (10) - 965,195,869 - 532,568,299
Investmentsin associated
companies 1) 75,144,513 7,825,550 48,448,470 (294,668)
Otherinvestments 12 115,828,394 - 10,422,696 -
Deferredexpenditure 13) 11,949,984 - 24,006,203 -
Net current assets/
(liabilities) (14) 689,352,738  (112,812,690) 840,818,466 325,642,015
1,164,222,072 864,458,380 1,206,274,891 863,089,698
Deduct:
Long-termliabilities (15) 4,074,366 - 62,228,396 -
Deferredtaxation (16) 6,356,000 - 5,437,000 -
Minorityinterests 16,844,474 - 9,679,691 -
Total Net Assets 1,136,947,232 864,458,380 1,128,929,804 863,089,698
Representing:
Sharecapital 17) 260,000,000 260,000,000 260,000,000 260,000,000
Sharepremium (18) 509,671,417 509,671,417 509,671,417 509,671,417
Contributedsurplus (29) 197,561,471 88,932,881 197,561,471 88,932,881
Translationreserve (20) (110,830) - 99,648 -
Capitalreserve 2,132 - 2,132 -
Propertyrevaluationreserve (21) 34,316,914 - 40,225,058 -
Retainedprofits (22) 135,506,128 5,854,082 121,370,078 4,485,400
Total Shareholders' Fund 1,136,947,232 864,458,380 1,128,929,804 863,089,698
ChoiYukKeung, Lawrence WongFookLam,Raymond
ManagingDirector Director

The financial statements on pages 33 to 60 were approved by the Board of Directorson 7 July 1998.



Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

Forthe yearended 31 March 1998

1998 1997
Notes HK$ HK$

Netcashinflow from operating activities (@ 570,474,839 516,739,641
Returnsoninvestmentsand servicing of finance

Interest received 65,733,410 25,438,401

Interest paid (2,542,234) (12,734,201)
Finance lease charges (4,433,193) (7,804,178)
Dividendsreceived from unlisted investments 652,909 2,102,804
Dividends received from listed investment 614,408 -
Dividends received from associated companies 30,200,000 -
Dividends paid (38,979,900) (180,000,000)
Netcash inflow/(outflow) fromreturnsoninvestments

and servicing of finance 51,245,400 (172,997,174)
Taxation
Hong Kong profits tax paid (54,338,385) (18,938,993)
HongKong profitstax recovered 115,404 379,610
Net tax paid (54,222,981) (18,559,383)
Investing activities
Purchases of fixed assets (50,006,949) (83,881,935)
Sale proceeds of fixed assets 1,888,992 3,777,915
Investment in associated companies (31,970,079) 81,061,058
Purchase of subsidiary
(Net of cash and cash equivalents acquired) (b) (2,805,863) -

Additionstodeferred expenditure (1,202,253) (12,157,634)
Increase in other investments (105,405,698) (4,205,609)
Deposit paid for acquisition of property (39,141,748) -
Netcash outflow frominvesting activities (228,643,598) (15,406,205)
Netcashinflowbeforefinancing carried forward 338,853,660 309,776,879
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Fortheyearended31 March 1998

1998 1997

Notes HK$ HK$

Netcashinflowbefore financingbroughtforward 338,853,660 309,776,879

Financing

Net proceeds received on issue of shares (ci) - 574,671,417
Repayment of obligations under finance leases (cii) (89,398,469) (48,433,143)
Repaymentofbankloan (ciii) (4,278,750) (2,852,500)
Minority interest (civ) 5,620,614 (728,028)
Netcash (outflow)/inflowfromfinancing (88,056,605) 522,657,746
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 250,797,055 832,434,625
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 675,590,090 (157,514,489)
Effectofforeignexchange rate changes (210,478) 669,954
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year (d) 926,176,667 675,590,090




Notes To Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

(a) Reconciliation of operating profit to net cash inflow from operating activities

(b)

1998 1997
HK$ HK$
Operatingprofit 332,863,543 242,518,521
Interestincome (67,515,532) (25,438,401)
Interestexpense 2,539,704 12,734,201
Finance lease charges 4,481,814 7,804,178
Depreciation on fixed assets 56,030,061 54,961,831
(Increase)/decrease in construction work-in-progress
and stocks (71,646,859) 134,149,678
Decrease/(increase) in debtors, deposits and prepayments 305,809,458 (226,881,798)
Increase in creditors and accruals 1,213,995 323,795,540
Decrease in bills payable and trust receipts (1,944,853) (31,573,029)
Amortisationofdeferredexpenditure 13,258,472 18,431,505
Loss/(profit) on disposal of fixed assets 120,026 (109,890)
(Decrease)/increase inamount due to affiliated companies (3,467,673) 6,360,778
Dividendsfromunlisted investment (652,909) -
Dividendsfrom listed investment (614,408) -
Exchangerealignment - (13,473)
Netcash inflowfrom operating activities 570,474,839 516,739,641
Purchase of subsidiary
1998 1997
HK$ HK$
Net assets purchased
Fixed assets 5,893,833 -
Stocks and work-in-progress 4,083,281 -
Debtorsand prepayments 135,009 -
Bank and cash 43,987 -
Creditors and accruals (4,974,565) -
Minority interest (2,331,695) -
Satisfied by cash 2,849,850 -
Analysis of net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the purchase of subsidiary
1998 1997
HK$ HK$
Cash consideration 2,849,850 -
Cash and cash equivalents acquired (43,987) -
2,805,863 -
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(c) Analysis of changes in financing during the year

1998 1997
HK$ HK$
(i) Sharecapitalandshare premium
Balance at the beginning of the year 769,671,417 341,649,166
Contributedsurplusfromrestructuring - (146,649,166)
Issue of shares - 604,500,000
Restructuring and share issue expenses - (29,828,583)
Balance at the end of the year 769,671,417 769,671,417
(i) Obligationsunder finance leases
Balance at the beginning of the year 101,278,171 113,564,071
Inception of finance lease contracts - 36,147,243
Repaymentduringtheyear (89,398,469) (48,433,143)
Balance at the end of the year 11,879,702 101,278,171
(iii) Bankloan
Balance at the beginning of the year 4,278,750 7,131,250
Repaymentduringtheyear (4,278,750) (2,852,500)
Balance at the end of the year - 4,278,750
(iv) Minorityinterest
Balance at the beginning of the year 9,679,691 10,368,804
Share of (loss)/profit during the year (787,526) 38,915
Purchase of subsidiary 2,331,695 -
Increase/(decrease) during the year 5,620,614 (728,028)
Balance at the end of the year 16,844,474 9,679,691
(d) Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents
1998 1997
HK$ HK$
Bank balances, deposits and cash 926,176,667 710,538,584
Bankloansand overdrafts - (34,948,494)

926,176,667 675,590,090




Notes to Financial Statements

Forthe yearended 31 March 1998

(1) General

The Companywasincorporated in Bermudaasan exempted company with limited liabilityand itsshares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the ““Stock Exchange™). The directors consider
that its ultimate holding company is Shui On Company Limited, a private limited liability company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

(2)

Significant Accounting Policies

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Basis of accounting
The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally
acceptedinHongKong.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statementsincorporate the financial statementsof the Companyandits
subsidiaries made up to 31 March each year. The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated profitand loss account from the effective date of
acquisition or made up to the effective date of disposal, asappropriate.

Capital reserve or goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries or associated companies represents the
shortfall or excess of the purchase consideration over the fair value of the Group's share of the
separable net assets of subsidiaries or associated companies at the date of acquisition. Capital
reserve or goodwill is credited or written off directly to reserves, respectively, in the year of
acquisition.

Ondisposal of asubsidiary or an associated company, the attributable amount of capital reserve or
goodwill relating to the subsidiary or associated company whichwas previously credited or written
off directly to reserves, respectively, isincluded in the calculation of the gain or loss on disposal of
the businessin the profit and loss account.

Allsignificantintercompany transactions and balances within the Group have been eliminated on
consolidation.

Subsidiaries

Asubsidiary isacompany in which the Company holds, directly or indirectly, more than half of the
issued share capital or controls more than half of the voting power or where the Company controls
the composition of its board of directors.

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the Company's balance sheet at cost less provision, if
necessary, forany permanentdiminutioninvalue.

Associated companies

An associated company isacompany, other than a subsidiary, in which the Group hasalong term
equity interest and over which the Group is in a position to exercise significant influence in
management, including participationincommercial and financial policy decisions.

The consolidated profitand loss account includes the Group's share of the post-acquisition results
of its associated companies for the year. In the consolidated balance sheet, investments in
associated companiesare stated at the Group'sshare of the net assets of the associated companies.

The results of associated companies are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received andreceivable during the year. Inthe Company’sbalance sheet, investmentsin associated
companies are stated at cost less provision, if necessary, for any permanent diminution value.
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(2) Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

(e)

(f)

(9)

(h)

Listed investments
Long-term listed investments are stated at cost less provision, if necessary, for any permanent
diminutioninvalue.

Jointventures

Joint ventures are interests in projects or business entities in respect of which the rights and
obligations of the partnersare governed by the respective joint venture contracts. Interestinjoint
ventures are stated at cost less provision for loss where appropriate.

Taxation

Hong Kong taxation is calculated at the prevailing rate on the estimated assessable profits less
available taxrelief for losses brought forward of each individual company comprising the Group.
Provision for taxationarising in other regions of the People’sRepublicof China (**PRC'*) and overseas
taxationis calculated based on the applicable local legislation on the estimated assessable profits
oftheindividualcompaniesconcerned. Taxdeferred oraccelerated by the effectoftimingdifferences
isprovided, using the liability method, to the extent that itis probable that aliability or an asset will
crystallize in the foreseeable future.

Tangible fixed assets and depreciation

Tangible fixed assets other thanland and buildingsin Hong Kong are stated at costlessdepreciation.
The cost of an asset comprisesits purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
assettoits presentworking condition and location for itsintended use. Expenditure incurred after
the fixed assets have been putinto operation, such as repairsand maintenance and overhaul costs,
are normally charged to the profit and loss account in the period in which they are incurred. In
situationswhere itcan be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure hasresulted inanincrease in
the future economic benefitsexpected to be obtained from the use of the tangible fixed assets, the
expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of the fixed assets.

When assetsare sold or retired, their cost or valuation and accumulated depreciation are removed
from the accounts and any gain or loss resulting from their disposal is included in the profitand
loss account.

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of fixed assets over their estimated useful livesand
after taking into account their estimated residue value, using the straight line method, at the
followingannualrates:-

Category of fixed assets Annualdepreciationrates

PropertyinHong Kongand other regions of
the PRC under medium lease

Leasehold Land Over the term of the lease
Buildings 25%
PropertyinHong Kong under shortlease Overtheterm of the lease
Plantand machinery 10-25%
Furniture, fixtures, equipmentand motorvehicles 20-33%

Land and buildingsin Hong Kong are stated in the balance sheet at their revalued amounts, being
the fair values on the basis of their existing use at the date of revaluation less any subsequent
accumulated depreciation. Revaluations are performed with sufficient regularity such that the
carryingamount does not differ materially from thatwhich would be determined using fair values
atthe balance sheetdate.



(2) Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
(h) Tangible fixed assets and depreciation (Continued)

(i)

1)

(k)

()

Anysurplusarising on revaluation of fixed assetsis credited to the property revaluation reserve, except
to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognised as an
expense, whenitis recognised asincome. A decrease in net carryingamountarising on revaluation of
fixed assetsis charged to the profitand loss account to the extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, on
the revaluation reserve relating to a previous revaluation of that asset. On the subsequent sale or
retirementofarevalued asset, the attributable revaluation surplusis transferred to retained profits.

Construction work-in-progress, consumable stores and stocks

Construction work-in-progress is stated at costs incurred plus estimated attributable profits less
foreseeable losses and progress payments received and receivable. Costs comprise direct materials,
labour and an appropriate portion of overheads. Estimated attributable profits from long-term
constructionand maintenance jobsare recognizedaccording tothestage of completiononcethedegree
of completion of a job exceeds 25 per cent and when the outcome of the contracts can be ascertained
with reasonable accuracy after making due allowance for anticipated losses at the time they are
identified. Profitsfromshort-term jobsare recognized when the jobsare completed.

Consumable stores are stated at the lower of cost and replacement value. Cost represents the actual
purchase cost calculated on aweighted average or first-in, first-out basis.

Stocks are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost, which comprises direct materials
and, whereapplicable, directlabour costsand those overheads that have been incurred inbringing the
stocks to their present locations and conditions, is calculated on afirst-in, first-out basis. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price less all further costs to completion and direct selling
expenses.

Recognition ofrevenue
(i) Income onlong-term contractsis recognised by reference to the value of work carried out during
theyear. Income from short-term contractsis recognised on completion basis.

(i) Interestincome is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the
interestrate applicable.

(iii) Sale of goods is recognised upon transfer to customers of the significant risks and rewards of
ownership ofthegoods.

(iv) Dividend income is recognised when the Group's right to receive the relevant payment has been
established.

Deferredexpenditure

Deferred expenditure includesssite establishment expenditure for quarrying rights or leaseswhich is
written off over the duration of the relevant quarrying rights or site leases. Pre-operating expenses
incurred before the commencement of full operation of a project are amortised over the period which
can reasonably be expected to benefit from such expenditure.

Re-instatement costs
Estimatedexpenditureinconnectionwithsiterestorationisprovidedforover thedurationoftherelevant
quarrying rights or the respective site leases.

8
c
@
S
g
H
s
o
=
&
=
Lo
-
8
0
Z




Fortheyearended31 March 1998

(2) Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
(m) Foreign currency translation

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies other than Hong Kong dollars at the
balance sheet date are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the rates of exchange ruling at that
date. Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
rates of exchange ruling at the transaction dates. Exchange differences arising therefrom are

included in the profitand loss account.

Onconsolidation, the financial statements of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong

dollarsatthe rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange differencesarising from
thetranslation of foreignsubsidiaries' financial statementsare dealtwithasmovementsinreserves.

(n) Finance leases and operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of ownership of the assets remain with the

Group are accounted for as finance leases. Assets held under finance leases are capitalized at their

fairvalue atthe date of acquisition and are recorded as fixed assets. The corresponding obligations
to pay future rentals are recorded as liabilities. Finance charges are charged to the profitand loss
account. Depreciation of leased assets is provided in accordance with the Group's depreciation

policy.

All other leases are classified as operating leases and the rentals are charged or credited to the

profitand loss account on a straight-line basis over the terms of the respective leases.

(o) Capitalization of borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, thatis, assets that necessarily take asubstantial period of time to get ready for theirintended
use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing

costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. Investment

income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised.

(p) Cashequivalents

Cash equivalents representshort-term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible

into known amounts of cash and which were within three months of maturity whenacquired, less

advances from banks repayable within three months from the date of the advance.

(3) Turnover

1998 1997
HK$ HK$

Gross certified value of construction revenue and
income from building maintenance jobs 3,839,316,540  3,963,020,830
Sale of construction materials 892,557,148 1,021,155,354
4,731,873,688 4,984,176,184

42



(4) Profitfrom Ordinary Activities

1998 1997
HK$ HK$
Profit from ordinary activitiesisarrived at after charging:

Bank interest paid 1,200,445 10,436,020
Finance lease charges 4,481,814 7,804,178
Interest on other loanswholly repayable within 5 years 1,339,259 2,298,181
7,021,518 20,538,379
Depreciation 58,616,233 57,416,866
Less: Amount capitalised to construction jobs (2,586,172) (2,455,035)
56,030,061 54,961,831

Directors' emoluments (note 4(i))

Directors'’ fee 170,000 42,500
Management remuneration 12,241,490 10,811,664
Provident fund contributions 432,384 353,537

Auditors' remuneration 2,044,700 2,008,477
Payments under operating leases on land and buildings 25,496,753 19,333,321
Amortisation of deferred expenditure 13,258,472 18,431,505
Loss on disposal of fixed assets 120,026 -
andaftercrediting:
Dividends from listed investment 614,408 -
Dividends from unlisted investment 652,909 2,102,804
Interest received 67,515,532 25,438,401
Profit on disposal of fixed assets - 109,890

(i) Directors'emoluments

Directors'emolumentsdisclosed pursuanttoSection 161 ofthe CompaniesOrdinanceareasfollows:-

1998 1997
HK$ HK$
Fees
Executive directors 60,000 15,000
Non-executive directors 110,000 27,500
Otheremoluments
Executive directors
Salaries and other benefits 12,241,490 10,811,664
Provident fund contributions 432,384 353,537
Non-executive directors - -
12,843,874 11,207,701
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(4) Profitfrom Ordinary Activities (Continued)

Directors' emolumentsfall within the following bands:

1998 1997

Numberof Number of

Emolumentbands directors directors
HK$0 - HK$1,000,000 5 5
HK$1,000,001 - HK$2,000,000 - 1
HK$2,000,001 - HK$3,000,000 3 2
HK$3,000,001 - HK$4,000,000 1
9 9

(ii) Five highest-paid employees
Among the five highest-paid employees, three (1997 - three) are executive directors whose
remuneration is disclosed in note 4(i) above. The remuneration of the other two (1997 - two)
employeesdisclosed pursuantto the RulesGoverning the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
is as follows:
1998 1997
HK$ HK$
Salariesand otheremoluments 4,541,569 4,295,361
Providentfundcontributions 165,888 143,090
4,707,457 4,438,451
The above emolumentsfallwithin the following bands:-
1998 1997
Numberof Numberof
Emolumentbands employees employees
HK$0 - HK$1,000,000 - -
HK$1,000,001 - HK$2,000,000 - -
HK$2,000,001 - HK$3,000,000 2 2
2 2

(iii) Employee providentand retirementscheme

The Group is a participating member in the Shui On Provident and Retirement Scheme (*'the
Scheme"). The Scheme is registered under the Occupational Retirement Scheme Ordinance. The
assets of the Scheme are administered by the Trustees of the Scheme and are held separately from
theassetsofthe Group. The Schemeisfunded by contributionsfrombothemployeesandemployers
at rates ranging from 5% to 10% of the employees' basic monthly salary. In accordance with the
rules of the Scheme, contributions forfeited due to the resignations of staff members are keptin
the Scheme and not used to reduce the contributions to be made by the Group.

The Group'stotal contribution to the Scheme charged to the profitand lossaccountduring the year
ended 31 March 1998 amounted to HK$15,240,169 (1997 - HK$9,491,095).



(5)

(6)

@

(8)

Taxation
1998 1997
HK$ HK$
Company and subsidiaries
Hong Kong profits tax 44,521,983 39,929,296
Deferred taxation (Note 16) 919,000 (114,000)
Associated companies
Hong Kong profits tax 4,984,417 3,620,883
Deferred taxation (460,000) 477,500
49,965,400 43,913,679

Hong Kong profits tax is provided at the rate of 16.5% (1997 - 16.5%) based on the estimated assessable

profitsfor theyear.

Profit Attributable to Shareholders

Theprofitattributable toshareholdersdealtwithinthe profitandlossaccountofthe Companyamounted

to HK$300,368,682 (1997 - HK$4,485,400) for the year.

Dividends
1998 1997
HK$ HK$
Interim dividend - HK$0.15 (1997 - nil) per share
on 260,000,000 shares 39,000,000 -
Proposeddividend:-
Final dividend - HK$0.30 (1997 - nil) per share
on 260,000,000 shares 78,000,000 -
Special dividend - HK$0.70 (1997 - nil) per share
on 260,000,000 shares 182,000,000 -
260,000,000 -
Dividends paid to shareholders of the Group's subsidiaries before
therestructuring of the Group in January 1997 - 180,000,000
299,000,000 180,000,000

Earnings per Share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the Group's profit for the year attributable to
shareholders of HK$313,136,050 (1997 - HK$223,414,699) and on 260,000,000 shares (1997 - weighted
average number of 205,863,014 shares) inissue during the year. The fully diluted earnings per shareiis
not shown as the exercise of the subscription rights attached to the share options would not have a

material diluting effecton earnings pershare.
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(9) Fixed Assets

Landand
Landand Landand buildingsin
buildings buildingsin  other regions
inHongKong HongKong of the PRC
undermedium- undershort undermedium-
TheGroup term lease lease term lease
HK$ HK$ HK$
Atcost/valuation
At 31/3/1997 76,518,982 27,750,743 -
Purchase of subsidiary - - 4,583,692
Additions - - 574,993
Disposals - - -
Reallocation - - -
Elimination of accumulated
depreciation of revalued land and
buildings under medium-term lease (3,110,838) - -
Revaluation deficits (5,908,144) - -
At31/3/1998 67,500,000 27,750,743 5,158,685
Accumulateddepreciation
At 31/3/1997 1,519,566 27,710,251 -
Purchase of subsidiary - - 395,343
Charge for the year 1,591,272 11,298 150,448
Written back on disposal - - -
Reallocation - - -
Elimination of accumulated
depreciation of revalued land and
buildings under medium-term lease (3,110,838) - -
At31/3/1998 - 27,721,549 545,791
Netbookvalue
At31/3/1998 67,500,000 29,194 4,612,894
At 31/3/1997 74,999,416 40,492 -
Basis of book value
Atvaluation 67,500,000 - -
At cost - 27,750,743 5,158,685
67,500,000 27,750,743 5,158,685

Notes: (i) The Group'sland and buildings in Hong Kong under medium-term lease have been revalued asat 31

March 1998 by Mr. William Randolph Robinson, a Chartered Surveyor, on an open market value basis.

The above-mentioned valuations have been adopted by the Directorsin these financial statementsand

the deficit arising from revaluation has been debited to property revaluation reserve. No separate

valuation was undertaken for land and buildingsin Hong Kong under short lease asits net book value is

immaterial.

(i) Medium-term lease isdefined asalease having not more than 50 yearsand not lessthan 20 years to run.

Short lease is defined as a lease having less than 20 years to run.



Equipment,

Plantand Plantand Motor Motor furniture

machinery machinery vehicles vehicles andother
owned leased owned leased assets Total
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
237,794,537 128,324,279 30,831,750 5,140,458 34,452,235 540,812,984
1,802,056 - 74,467 - 35,420 6,495,635
42,808,890 - 2,342,769 31,487 4,248,810 50,006,949
(10,250,079) = (3,398,062) = (2,642,296)  (16,290,437)
110,626,670 (110,626,670) 5,171,945 (5,171,945) - -
- - 5 = - (3,110,838)
- - - - - (5,908,144)
382,782,074 17,697,609 35,022,869 - 36,094,169 572,006,149
146,575,827 47,637,999 12,875,990 1,220,661 20,693,634 258,233,928
176,912 - 25,691 - 3,856 601,802
32,522,913 14,480,422 5,663,735 601,719 3,594,426 58,616,233
(8,723,493) = (2,920,685) = (2,637,241)  (14,281,419)
51,773,145 (51,773,145) 1,822,380 (1,822,380) - -
- - - - - (3,110,838)
222,325,304 10,345,276 17467111 - 21,654,675 300,059,706
160,456,770 7,352,333 17,555,758 - 14,439,494 271,946,443
91,218,710 80,686,280 17,955,760 3,919,797 13,758,601 282,579,056
- - - - - 67,500,000
382,782,074 17,697,609 35,022,869 - 36,094,169 504,506,149
382,782,074 17,697,609 35,022,869 - 36,094,169 572,006,149

(i) Should the revalued land and buildings in Hong Kong under medium-term lease be carried at cost less
accumulated depreciation, their net book value as at the balance sheet date would be HK$33,583,086
(1997 - HK$35,174,358).
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(9) Fixed Assets (Continued)

Equipment,
furniture
Motor andother
TheCompany vehicles assets Total
HK$ HK$ HK$
Atcost
Balance at 31/3/1997 565,241 4,891,672 5,456,913
Additions 226,204 341,367 567,571
Disposals - (3,682) (3,682)
Balance at 31/3/1998 791,445 5,229,357 6,020,802
Accumulateddepreciation
Balance at 31/3/1997 59,448 223,413 282,861
Charge for the year 205,113 1,283,177 1,488,290
Balance at 31/3/1998 264,561 1,506,590 1,771,151
Netbookvalue
Balance at 31/3/1998 526,884 3,722,767 4,249,651
Balance at 31/3/1997 505,793 4,668,259 5,174,052
(10) Investments in Subsidiaries
1998 1997
HK$ HK$
Unlisted shares, at cost 283,932,893 283,932,881
Add: Amountsdue fromsubsidiaries 691,325,255 249,453,695
975,258,148 533,386,576
Less: Amounts due to subsidiaries 10,062,279 818,277
965,195,869 532,568,299

Particulars regarding the principal subsidiaries are set outin Appendix | to these financial statements.



(11) Investments in Associated Companies

1998 1997
TheGroup TheCompany TheGroup  TheCompany
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Share of net assets of
associated companies 44,823,544 - 50,097,580 -
Amountsduefrom
associated companies 95,691,335 7,825,550 70,680,063 -
Amountsdueto
associated companies (65,370,366) - (72,329,173) (294,668)
75,144,513 7,825,550 48,448,470 (294,668)

Particulars regarding the principal associated companies are set out in Appendix Il to these financial
statements.

(12) OtherInvestments

1998 1997

TheGroup TheCompany TheGroup  TheCompany
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

Atcost:
Listed investmentsin Hong Kong 89,318,408 - - -
Interestin jointventures (note) 26,479,986 - 10,412,696 -
Otherunlisted investments 30,000 - 10,000 -
115,828,394 - 10,422,696 -

Marketvalue of listed investments 90,341,950 - - -

Note:

Interestin jointventures represents the Group'sinterest in the following jointly controlled entities:

Place ofincorporation Percentage
Name ofentity andoperation Principal activities interest
Beijing Shui OnJoint Beijing,PRC BuildingConstruction 50%
Venture Construction
Company Limited
Shanghai ShuiOn Shanghai,PRC BuildingConstruction 50%
Construction Company
Limited
NanjingJiangnanCement Nanjing,PRC Manufacturingand 60%
Company Limited tradingofcement
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(13) Deferred Expenditure

Asat Amortisation Asat
31March during 31March
1997 Additions theyear 1998
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Site establishment costs 18,969,077 - (11,385,469) 7,583,608
Pre-operatingexpenses 5,037,126 1,202,253 (1,873,003) 4,366,376
24,006,203 1,202,253 (13,258,472) 11,949,984
(14) Net Current Assets/(Liabilities)
1998 1997
TheGroup  TheCompany TheGroup  TheCompany
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Currentassets
Constructionwork-in-progress
and stocks (note) 186,991,684 - 108,675,372 -
Tax prepaid - - 54,404 -
Deposit for acquisition of
property 39,141,748 - s -
Debtors, depositsand
prepayments 616,368,717 5,266,784 920,261,044 5,162,475
Bank balances, deposits
and cash 926,176,667 146,991,628 710,538,584 323,692,972
1,768,678,816 152,258,412  1,739,529,404 328,855,447
Deduct:
Currentliabilities
Bills payable and trust receipts - - 1,944,853 -
Creditorsand accruals 788,375,180 5,071,102 782,120,430 3,213,432
Proposed dividends 260,000,000 260,000,000 - -
Bank loansand overdrafts
(unsecured) - - 34,948,494 -
Currentportionoflong-term
liabilities 7,805,336 - 43,328,525 -
Provision for taxation 20,055,898 - 29,811,299 -
Amountdue toaffiliated
companies 3,089,664 - 6,557,337 -
1,079,326,078 265,071,102 898,710,938 3,213,432
689,352,738  (112,812,690) 840,818,466 325,642,015




(14) Net Current Assets/(Liabilities) (Continued)

Note:
1998 1997
TheGroup TheCompany TheGroup ~ TheCompany
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Constructionwork-in-progress
Direct costs incurred to-date on
contracts plus attributable profits
less foreseeable losses 3,922,360,353 - 6,919,202,324 -
Less: Progress payments
received and receivable 3,775,287,735 - 6,861,015,273 -
147,072,618 - 58,187,051 -
Stocks of aggregates, materials
and consumable stores 39,919,066 - 50,488,321 -
186,991,684 - 108,675,372 -
(15) Long-Term Liabilities
1998 1997
TheGroup TheCompany TheGroup TheCompany
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Obligationsunder finance leases
repayable:-
Within one year 7,805,336 - 40,476,025 -
In the second year 4,074,366 - 35,414,157 -
In the third to fifth year, inclusive - - 24,668,276 -
More than five years - - 719,713 -
11,879,702 - 101,278,171 -
Less: Current portion 7,805,336 - 40,476,025 -
4,074,366 - 60,802,146 -
Bankloan (secured) repayable:-
Withinoneyear - - 2,852,500 -
In the second year - - 1,426,250 -
- - 4,278,750 -
Less: Current portion - - 2,852,500 -
- - 1,426,250 -
Total 4,074,366 - 62,228,396 -
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(16) Deferred Taxation

TheGroup
1998 1997
HK$ HK$
Balancebroughtforward 5,437,000 5,551,000
Charge for the year (Note 5) 919,000 (114,000)
Balancecarried forward 6,356,000 5,437,000

Atthebalance sheetdate, the major components of the deferred taxation liabilities/(assets), provided

and unprovided, are asfollows:

Provided Unprovided
1998 1997 1998 1997
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
TheGroup
Taxeffectoftiming differences
arising from:
Excess of tax allowances over
depreciation 8,456,000 7,112,000 7,843,000 6,133,000
Other timing differences (2,100,000) (1,675,000) - -

Tax effect of taxation losses -

= (9,800,000) (8,269,000)

6,356,000 5,437,000 (1,957,000) (2,136,000)
(17) Share Capital
(a) Authorized:
1998 1997
HK$ HKS$

400,000,000 shares of HK$1 each

400,000,000 400,000,000

(b) Issued and fully paid:

1998 1997
HK$ HK$

260,000,000 shares of HK$1 each

260,000,000 260,000,000




(17)

(19)

Share Capital (Continued)

(c) Employee share option scheme

Under the Employee Share Option Scheme which became effective on 16 July 1997, the board of
directors of the Company may offer to any director or full time employee of the Company, or any of
itssubsidiaries, options to subscribe for sharesin the Company at a price equal to the higher of the
nominal value of the sharesand 90% of the average of the closing prices of the shares on the Stock
Exchange onthefive trading daysimmediately after the preliminaryannouncementofthe Group's

annual results, subject to amaximum of 1096 of the issued share capital of the Company from time
totime. Consideration paid for each option was HK$1.00.

Pursuant to the employee share option scheme, options to subscribe for shares in the Company
are granted to certain executives. At 31 March 1998, options to subscribe for 2,550,000 shares
within the following exercisable periodswere outstanding (1997 : Nil):

Option Number
Exercisable period price of shares
HK$
25 January 1998 - 24 July 2002 7.50 510,000
25 July 1998 - 24 July 2002 7.50 510,000
25 July 1999 - 24 July 2002 7.50 510,000
25 July 2000 - 24 July 2002 7.50 510,000
25July 2001 - 24 July 2002 7.50 510000
2,550,000
(18) Share Premium
1998 1997
TheGroup TheCompany TheGroup  TheCompany
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Balancebroughtforward 509,671,417 509,671,417 - -
Premium on issue of shares - - 539,500,000 539,500,000
Restructuring and share issue

expenses - - (29,828,583)  (29,828,583)
Balancecarriedforward 509,671,417 509,671,417 509,671,417 509,671,417

Contributed Surplus

1998 1997

TheGroup TheCompany TheGroup  TheCompany
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

Balancebroughtforward
and carried forward 197,561,471 88,932,881 197,561,471 88,932,881

Contributed surplus arose when the Company issued shares in exchange for the equity in subsidiaries
and associated companies pursuant to the restructuring in January 1997. Under the Companies Act of
1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed surplus is distributable to the shareholders of the

Company.
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Fortheyearended31 March 1998

(20) Translation Reserve

1998 1997
TheGroup TheCompany TheGroup  TheCompany
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Balancebroughtforward 99,648 - (570,306) -
Exchangedifferenceon
translation of financial
statements of foreign
subsidiaries (210,478) - 669,954 -
Balancecarried forward (110,830) - 99,648 -
(21) Property Revaluation Reserve
1998 1997
TheGroup TheCompany TheGroup  TheCompany
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Balancebroughtforward 40,225,058 - - -
Revaluation (deficit)/surpluson
the Group's land and buildings
inHongKong under
medium-term lease (5,908,144) - 40,225,058 -
Balancecarriedforward 34,316,914 - 40,225,058 -
(22) Retained Profits
1998 1997
TheGroup TheCompany TheGroup  TheCompany
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Balancebroughtforward 121,370,078 4,485,400 77,955,379 -
Profitfortheyearretained 14,136,050 1,368,682 43,414,699 4,485,400
Balancecarriedforward 135,506,128 5,854,082 121,370,078 4,485,400
Profitsretained by
Company 5,854,082 4,485,400
Subsidiaries 98,344,191 80,302,787
Associated companies 31,307,855 36,581,891
135,506,128 121,370,078

Asatthe balance sheet date, the Company's reserves, including the contributed surplus as per note 19
above, available for distribution to shareholdersamounted to HK$94,786,963 (1997 - HK$93,418,281).



(23)

(24)

Quarrying Contract

The right granted to a subsidiary, Lamma Rock Products Limited (*'LRP""), to operate a quarry at asite
onLammalsland, HongKong hasbeenextended forafurther period of 5yearsplusa2year maintenance
period commencing December 1995. Atthe end of the extended period, LRPisobliged toreinstate the
quarry site and remove all plant and machinery and other structures from the quarry area at its own

cost.

Related Party Transactions

During theyear, in the ordinary and normal course of business, the Group had the following significant
transactions with Shui On Company Limited and its subsidiaries and associated companies other than
those of the Group (**'SOCL Group'), conducted onanarm'slength basisand under normal commercial

termssimilar to those provided to third parties:

1998 1997
Nature of transactions HK$'000 HK$'000
Incomereceived from SOCL Group:
Construction/subcontractingwork - 12,640
Supply of construction materials - 22,094
Decorationwork 16,131 9,590
Machine hire and repairsand maintenance - 22,083
Managementand information systemsservices 564 -
Interest - 12,430
Costs and expenses paid to SOCL Group:
Construction/subcontractingwork 2,652 138,243
Supply of construction materials - 2,987
Managementand administrative services - 24,071
Interest - 1,456
Royalty paid for the use of land for the production of concrete - 656
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Fortheyearended31 March 1998

(25)

(26)

(27)

Commitments and Contingent Liabilities
Asatthe balance sheetdate, the Group had commitmentsand contingentliabilities not provided forin
these financial statements as follows:-

(@) performance bonds established amounting to approximately HK$322,000,000 (1997 -
HK$222,000,000);

(b) guarantees in lieu of utility deposits amounting to approximately HK$1,000,000 (1997 -
HK$1,000,000);

(c) balance paymentforthe acquisition of a property amounting to approximately HK$116,000,000
(2997 - nil);

(d) commitment under an equity joint venture agreement to make equity contributions of
RMB96,000,000 (1997 - nil); and

(e) commitmentsunder operating leases in respect of land and buildings to make paymentsin the
nextyear as follows:-

1998 1997
HK$ HK$

Operating leaseswhich expire:
withinoneyear 1,357,876 6,133,000
in the second to fifth year inclusive 15,538,349 16,960,966
over five years 1,133,878 -

18,030,103 23,093,966

Post Balance Sheet Event

Subsequent to the balance sheet date, awholly-owned subsidiary of the Company has made abalance
paymentofapproximately HK$116,000,000foracquiringapropertyinHongKongfromanindependent
third party for a total cash consideration of $155,000,000.

Comparative Figures
Certaincomparative figures have beenre-aligned toconformwith the presentation of the currentyear.



Appendix|
Particulars of Principal Subsidiaries

The Directors are of the opinion that a complete list of the particulars of all subsidiaries will be of excessive length and therefore the
following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which principally affect the results or assets of the Group. All the companies

listed belowwere incorporated and are operating inHong Kong except otherwise indicated.

Attributable
Direct subsidiaries interest Issued and paid-up share capital Principal activities
*ShuiOnContractorsLimited 100% 1share of US$1 Investmentholding
*  ShuiOn MaterialsLimited 100% 1share of US$1 Investmentholding
Attributable Issued and paid up share capital/
Indirect subsidiaries interest registered capital Principal activities
AsiaNo.1 Material Supply Limited 100% 100 ordinary shares of HK$100 each Holding ofaquarryright
1,000non-votingdeferredshares
of HK$100 each
BillionCentre CompanyLimited 100% 100 ordinaryshares of HK$1 each Holding ofaland lease
2non-votingdeferredshares
of HK$1 each
DynamicMarkLimited 100%0 100 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Investmentholding
3,000,000 non-voting deferred shares
of HK$1 each
* Eventful Time InvestmentsLimited 100% 1share of US$1 Investmentholding
First DirectionLimited 100%0 100 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Propertyholding
2non-votingdeferredshares
of HK$1 each
GreatMarketLimited 100% 100 ordinaryshares of HK$1 each Investmentholding
5non-voting deferredshares
of HK$1 each
** GuangdongKenonConcreteCo.,Ltd. 100% Registered and paid up capital Supply of ready-mixed
HK$10,500,000 concrete
** GuangzhouKenOnConcreteCo.,Ltd. 100%0 Registered and paid up capital Supply of ready-mixed
HK$10,500,000 concrete
InstantMortarsLimited 100% 2 ordinary sharesof HK$1 each Supply of ready-mixed
mortars
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Attributable

Issued and paid up share capital/

Indirect subsidiaries interest registered capital Principal activities
JescaLimited 100% 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Investmentholding
KenOnConcreteCompanyLimited 100% 11,000,0000rdinary Supplyofready-mixed
shares of HK$1 each concrete
KinewCompanyLimited 66.7% 3ordinary sharesof HK$1 each Holding ofaland lease
KinscoreLimited 100% 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Investmentholding
KotemaxLimited 100% 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Propertyholding
LammaRockProductsLimited 100% 100 ordinary sharesof HK$10 each Quarrying
3,500,000n0on-voting
deferred shares of HK$10 each
Panyu Dynamic Mark Steel & 7% Registeredand paid Steelfabrication

AluminiumEngineeringCo. Ltd.

Panyu Shui Fai Metal Works 55%
Engineering Company Limited

PatDavieLimited 60%
Pat Davie (China) Limited 60%
P.D. (Contractors)Limited 60%
PinetopLimited 100%
ProjectWayLimited 100%

up capital HK$4,000,000

Registered and paid up
capital HK$9,000,000

2,600,100 ordinary shares of HK$1 each

100,000non-voting
deferred shares of HK$10 each

2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each

1,000,000o0rdinary
shares of HK$1 each

2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each

2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each

Manufacturingwallformand
othermetalworks

Interiordecoration,
fittingout, design
andcontracting

Investmentholding

Renovationwork

Investmentholding

Investmentholding



Attributable

Issued and paid up share capital/

Indirect subsidiaries interest registered capital Principal activities
Shui Fai Metal Works 55% 10,000 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Salesand installation
Engineering Company Limited ofwallformand
othermetalworks
Shui OnBuilding 100%0 6,000,100 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Buildingconstruction
ContractorsLimited 33,000,100non-voting andmaintenance
deferred shares of HK$1 each
50,000non-voting
deferred shares of HK$1,000 each
Shui OnBuilding 100%0 100 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Investmentholding
Materials Limited 1,000,000n0on-voting andsale of
deferred shares of HK$1 each constructionmaterials
ShuiOnConstruction 100%0 100 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Buildingconstruction
CompanyLimited 69,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares of HK$1 each
1,030,000n0on-voting
deferred shares of HK$100 each
ShuiOnCorporate 100%0 2 ordinary shares of Provisionof
Services Limited HK$1 each corporateservices
Shui OnPlant & Equipment 100% 1,611,000 ordinaryshares of HK$1 each Owningandleasing of
Services Limited 45,389,000non-voting plantand machinery
deferred shares of HK$1 each and structural steel
constructionwork
** XinhuiLongkoushan 100% Registered and paid Quarrying

Rock Products Limited

* Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
* Registered and operatedin other regions of the PRC

up capital US$1,785,700
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The Directorsare of the opinion thatacomplete list of the particulars of all associated companies will be of excessive length and therefore
the following list contains only the particulars of associated companies which principally affect the results or assets of the Group. All the

associated companieswere incorporated and are operating in Hong Kong except otherwise stated:-

Attributable Issued and paid up share capital/

Indirectassociated companies interest registered capital Principal activities
BiellaEnterprisesLimited 20% 5ordinary sharesof HK$1 each Holding ofaland lease
Brisfull Limited 50% 5,000,000 ordinary shares Sale and installation of

of HK$1 each aluminiumwindowproducts

CityEngineeringLimited 50% 10,000 ordinaryshares Installationof

of HK$1 each mouldwork

FarEastCement 50% 200,000 ordinary shares Tradingofcement

Company Limited of HK$100 each andinvestmentholding

HouswellEnterprisesLimited 50% 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Tradingofbaggedcement

**  KaipingBiaofuMetal 50% Registered and paid up capital Manufacturingofaluminium

Products Limited US$800,000 windowproducts

QuorumAsiaLimited 30% 2 ordinary shares of HK$1 each Interiordecoration,

designand contracting

*# THIndustrialManagement 50% 2,740 ordinary shares Investmentholding
Limited of US$1 each

**# Chongqing T.H.Cement Co.Ltd. 34% Registered and paid up Manufacturingand

capital RMB50,000,000 sale of cement

**# ChonggingT.H.Special A% Registered capital RMB125,000,000 Manufacturingand

CementCo. Ltd. and paid up capital RMB88,687,797 sale of cement

**# ChongqingT.H.White 3% Registered and paid up Manufacturingand

CementCo. Ltd. capital US$1,506,000 sale of cement

Incorporatedinthe Bahamas

Registered and operated in other regions of the PRC
#  Companiesnotaudited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu



Appendixlll
Particulars of Properties

Particulars of properties held by the Group as at 31 March 1998 were as follows:-

Approx.floor
Location Use area (Sq. Ft.) Group’sinterest
Section A of Lot No.609, Lot Nos.610and 611, Workshop 27,980 100%
Section F of Lot No. 612 in Demarcation District andstorage
No.85, Fanling, New Territories
Section B and the Remaining Portion of Lot No.1477 Workshop 17,260 100%
in Demarcation District No.77, Ping Che, Fanling, andstorage
NewTerritories
ERTMIBED /R Workshop 25,380 55%
andstorage
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(1

(2)

Results

The proformacombined resultsofthe Groupforthe fouryearsended 31 March 1997 have been prepared

on amerger basis as if the existing group structure had been in existence throughout the relevant

years.
Fortheyearended 31 March
1994 1995 1996 1997 1998
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
Turnover 1,717,050 2,341,095 3,066,611 4,984,176 4,731,873
Operatingprofit 22,969 32,306 75,450 242,518 332,864
Share of results of
associated companies (2,197) 3,033 6,495 24,849 29,450
Profitbeforetaxation 20,772 35,339 81,945 267,367 362,314
Taxation (1,398) (2,839) (12,740) (43,913) (49,965)
Profitaftertaxation 19,374 32,500 70,205 223,454 312,349
Minorityinterests (569) (2,092) (198) (39) 787
Profitattributableto
shareholders 18,805 30,408 70,007 223,415 313,136
Assets and Liabilities
Asat31 March
1997 1998
HK$'000 HKS$'000
Fixed assets 282,579 271,946
Interestin associated companies 48,449 75,145
Otherinvestments 10,423 115,828
Deferredexpenditure 24,006 11,950
Currentassets 1,739,529 1,768,679
Currentliabilities (898,711) (1,079,326)
Long-termliabilities (62,228) (4,074)
Deferredtaxation (5,437) (6,356)
Minorityinterest (9,680) (16,844)
Net assets 1,128,930 1,136,948




Notice of Annual General Meeting

Noticeis hereby given that the Annual General Meeting of the shareholders of Shui On Construction and
MaterialsLimited (**the Company'") will be held at Boardroom |, Grand Hyatt, 1 Harbour Road, Hong Kong on
Tuesday, 8 September 1998 at 3:00 p.m. for the following purposes:-

1 Toreceive and consider the audited Financial Statementsand the Reports of the Directorsand Auditors
fortheyearended 31 March 1998.

2. Todeclare afinal dividend and a special dividend.
3. ToelectDirectorsand fix theirremuneration.
4. Tore-appointAuditorsand authorise the Directorsto fix their remuneration.

5. Toconsider asspecial business and, if thought fit, pass with or withoutamendments, the following
resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions:

Ordinary Resolutions
() "THAT:

(@) subjectto paragraph (b) below, the exercise by the Directors during the Relevant Period (as
hereinafter defined) of all the powers of the Company to allot, issue and deal with additional
shares of HK$1.00 each in the capital of the Company and to make or grant offers, agreements
oroptions (including bonds, warrantsand debentures convertible into shares of the Company)
which would or might require the exercise of such powers either during or after the Relevant
Period be and ishereby generally and unconditionally approved,;

(b

~

the aggregate nominalamountofthe share capital allotted oragreed conditionally or
unconditionally to be allotted and issued by the Directors pursuant to thisResolution,
otherwise than pursuant to (i) arightsissue; (ii) any option scheme or similar arrangement for
the time being adopted for the grant or issue to the employees of the Company and/or any of
its subsidiaries of shares or rights to acquire shares of the Company; or (iii) any scrip dividend
pursuant to the Bye-laws of the Company from time to time, shall not exceed twenty per cent.
of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company inissue as at the date of
thisResolution, and the said approval shall be limited accordingly; and

(c) forthe purposes of thisResolution:

""RelevantPeriod" means the period from the passing of this Resolution until whichever is the
earlierof:

(i) theconclusionofthe nextannual general meeting of the Company;

(i) theexpirationofthe period withinwhich the nextannual generalmeeting of the Company
isrequired by law to be held; or

(iif) the date on which the authority set out in this Resolution is revoked or varied by ordinary
resolution of the shareholdersin general meeting of the Company."
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(1) "THAT:

(a) subjectto paragraph (b) below, the exercise by the Directors during the Relevant Period (as
hereinafter defined) of all the powers of the Company to repurchase shares of HK$1.00 eachiin
the capital of the Company on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "*Stock
Exchange") subject to and in accordance with all applicable laws and the requirements of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange asamended from time to time
be and ishereby generally and unconditionally approved;

(b) theaggregate nominalamountofthe shares of the Company to be repurchased pursuantto the
approval in paragraph (a) above shall not exceed ten per cent. of the aggregate nominal
amount of the share capital of the Company in issue as at the date of this Resolution and the
said approval shall be limited accordingly; and

(c) theexpression"'RelevantPeriod" shall for the purposes of this Resolution have the same
meaning asassigned to it under Ordinary Resolution | set out in the notice convening this
meeting."

(1) ""THAT the general mandate granted to the Directors to allot, issue and deal with additional shares
of the Company pursuant to Ordinary Resolution | set out in the notice convening this meeting be
and is hereby extended by the addition thereto of anamountrepresenting the aggregate nominal
amount of the share capital of the Company repurchased by the Company under the authority
granted pursuant to Ordinary Resolution |l set out in the notice convening this meeting, provided
thatsuchamountshall not exceed ten per cent. of the aggregate nominal amount of the share
capital of the Company in issue as at the date of thisResolution."*

By Order of the Board

Evans Li
CompanySecretary

Hong Kong, 7 July 1998

Notes:-

(1 Anymemberentitled to attend and vote at the above meetingisentitled to appoint one or more proxiesto
attend and, onapoll, vote in hisstead. A proxy need not be amember of the Company.

(2) Tobevalid,aform of proxy, togetherwith the power of attorney or other authority (ifany) underwhich itis
signed, or a notarially certified copy thereof, must be lodged with the head office of the Company at 34th
Floor, Shui On Centre, 6-8 Harbour Road, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for
holdingthemeeting.

(3) Theregister of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 1 September 1998 to Tuesday, 8
September 1998, both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be effected.

(4) Concerning Ordinary Resolution labove, approvalis being sought from the membersasageneral mandate in
compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange. The Directors, however,
have noimmediate plans to issue any new shares of the Company.

(5) Anexplanatorystatementcontaining further detailsregarding Ordinary Resolution llabove will be sent to
memberstogetherwith the 1997/98 Annual Report.
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